
 

DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 
    

22650 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

Downtown Hayward Improvement Association 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday, July 22nd, 2021 – 2:00 p.m. 
Zoom Video Meeting – 

CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS TERMINATION OF  
AGREEMENT ON ITEM 5 (Only Board and staff to be Present) 

 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81623343835?pwd=MThlU0dpNUwrdEFhWGNPdzZMZXBsdz09  
or call: 1 669 900 9128. Meeting ID: 816 2334 3835 Password: 344221 

 
AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order & Introductions:  Jeff Jurow, President 
 

2. Approval of Minutes from May 27th, 2021 Meeting    Action Item 
 

3. Community/Public Comment/City Announcements 
a. Heritage Park, opening and next steps  
b. Navigation Center & Downtown Homeless Outreach: Status 
c. Extension of Outdoor Dining in Downtown - status 
d. Main Street Complete Streets Project – status 
e. Old City Hall – status 
f. Upcoming Nominations Committee appointment, sent Annual meeting date 

         Action Item 
 

4. Committee Reports: 
 (Executive Committee) – Jeff Jurow 

a. FY 21-22 YTD Budget Report: Review 
b. Annual report status – completed & distributed 

  
(DISI Committee) –  Sara Buizer 
a. DHIA Social Media: Update 
b. B Street Decorative Banners: Update 
c. Recommendations on events by the Chamber, $15,500, see attached 

         Action Item 
d. Possibility of other Downtown Events in Q3 & Q4 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81623343835?pwd=MThlU0dpNUwrdEFhWGNPdzZMZXBsdz09

Text Box
Pg. 7-8


Text Box
Pg. 3-6


Text Box
Pg. 9


Text Box
Pg. 10-17


Text Box
Pg. 18-21


Text Box
Pg. 22-28



       

  
 

(SOBO Committee) – Jeff Jurow 
a. DHIA Maintenance Operations: Update  
b. DHIA Pilot Camera Program: Update 

 c. Status of Security Patrol program      Action Item 
  

(Land Use Committee) – Bill Matheson 
a. Need to Review Slated Development Projects In-District 
b. Main and Maple 
c. Status of Lincoln Landing 
d. Dispensaries 
e. Downtown Fiber Infrastructure  
f. BART development 
g. Set meeting 

 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS STATUS AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT WITH 
VENDOR SELECTED (Only Board and staff to  be present)  Action Item 

     
  6. Other 
 
7. Next Board of Directors Meeting: ___________________________________ 

 
BROWN ACT: Government Code 54950 (The Brown Act) requires that a brief description of each 
item to be transacted or discussed be posted at least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting. The 
Corporation posts all Board and Committee agendas at 22654 Main Street, Hayward, CA 94541. 
This meeting is noticed and conducted pursuant to § 54953(b) as amended by 
Executive Order N-25-20. Action may not be taken on items not identified as such and posted 
on the agenda.  For more information, please call Monica Montes at 888 356-2726 
 
 


Text Box
2


Text Box
Pg. 29


Text Box
Pg. 30-39



 

DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 
    

22650 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

Downtown Hayward Improvement Association 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday, May 27th, 2021, 10:00 a.m.  
Zoom Video Board meeting 

 
Present: Dinesh Shah, Sara Buizer, Resti Zaballos, Thomas Leung, Jeff Jurow, Kim Huggett, 

Bill Matheson, Catherine Ralston, Ben Schweng,    
 
Absent:  Alfredo Rodriguez, Michael Helenius, Nicole Franklin 
 
Staff:   Marco Li Mandri, Dominic Li Mandri/New City America  
 
MINUTES: 
 

Item Discussion Action Taken? 

1.  Introductions Introductions of all present were made.  Jeff Jurow, 
President, called the zoom Board together at 10:10 

No action taken 

2.  Approval of the 
March 24th, 2021, 
2021  Board of 
Directors  meeting 
minutes 

The minutes of the March 24th, 2021, Board of 
Directors meeting were reviewed.   

Sara moved and 
Kim seconded 
approval of the 
March 24th, 2021, 
Board of Directors 
minutes.  The 
minutes were 
approved 
unanimously  

3. Community/Public 
Comment/City 
Announcement 

(Heritage Park)  No update 
(Navigation Center)  A new hotel annex to the 
Navigation Center just opened.  Sara gave an 
update. 
(Downtown Dining)  Catherine gave an update on 
the 2 successful restaurants that are using the 
program.  Acqua e Farina and the Bistro will be 
allowed to operate on Main Street through the end 
of the year.  Main Street closures on Saturday will 
continue. 
(Downtown Business Update) Catherine announced 
two new records stores, Ska Dog & The Stacks, will 
both be having their respective grand openings on 

No action taken 


Text Box
3



       

2 
 

June 12th on B Street. The Mayor and various City 
officials will be in attendance to celebrate.   
(Main St. Project)  The Main Street revamp is on 
hold for now, will not happen for at least a year 
from now. 
Discussion followed on all issues.   

4.  Committee Reports   

Executive Committee:  
Jeff Jurow. 
 
a.  YTD Budget report 
for 2021 

a.  The 2021 YTD budget was reviewed.  Most if 
not all expenses are under budget.  The collection 
rate is somewhat low.  Sara will look to see if the 
City has made its assessment payments into the 
district thus far.  

a.  The YTD budget 
report was 
approved by 
consensus. 
 

District Identity: 
Sara Buizar 
 
a. Social Media update 
 
b. Main Street Outdoor 
Dining Parklets 
 
c.  Banners 
 
d.  Downtown events 
 
 
 
 
  

a.  Dominic gave an update on the social media 
program through the Chamber.  This is costing us 
around $900 per month, but we are getting great 
results.  Both Sara and Dominic are pleased with 
the postings as well as the content.  Discussion 
followed. 
 
b.  Dominic gave an update on the conceptual 
designs of outdoor dining plans that received from 
the Committee’s hired architect (Studio4 
Architecture). The structures are being designed to 
be easily placed against the curb on Main Street 
and can be moved around or lined up for 
continuous frontage as needed.  Discussion 
followed.  
 
c.  Dominic has collected historic photos from the 
Historical Society, he will be working on a 
summer/fall banner program for the decorative 
poles on B Street (12 in all).  
 
d.  Downtown events have yet to be scheduled. 

a.  No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b.  No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
c.  No action taken 
 
 
 
 
d.  No action taken 
 

Sidewalk Operations: 
Jeff Jurow 
 
a.  NexStreet Audit of 
DHIA Operations. 
 
b.  DHIA Pilot Camera 
Program 
 
c.  Status of Barbary 
Coast Security Contract 
 

a.  The SOBO Committee recently reviewed a list of 
equipment recommendations supplied by NexStreet 
consultants after a May audit of DHIA operations.  
All recommended equipment items have been 
approved in the budget by the SOBO Committee 
except the crew radios line item.  The current 
budget can accommodate all other items.  
Discussion followed. 
 
b.  Dominic gave an update on the implementation 
of the camera system for Downtown. 3 of the 5 
pilot locations are moving forward with installation, 

a.  No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
b.  No action taken   
 
 
 
 
 


Text Box
4






       

3 
 

 with the first location (Sapporo), expecting 
installation within the next week. Staff are still 
working on potential replacement sites for the 
C/Main Street site and the now-empty Weight 
Watchers location on Mission Blvd.  
c. Previously the Board had approved using Barbary 
Coast Security based upon the following points.  
The proposal was included in the Board packet and 
included the following key points: 

1. Not to exceed $18,000 per month. 
2. Initial term would be 7 months; ($126,000) 
3. There will be a 30-day escape clause that 

can be initiated by either party,  
without cause required. All pending 
payments for work completed will be fully  
made if the DHIA elects to terminate this 
service prior to the projected end date.  

4. DHIA Staff must be provided with a monthly 
shift schedule of patrol services a  
week prior to implementation; DHIA staff 
must be provided with contact  
information for all on-duty personnel 
assigned to this contract. 

5. The entire district must be covered each 
shift by walking patrols, or non-funded  
bike patrols. 

6. We need daily activity reports on all in-
district interactions, contacts with HPD  
and patrol trouble spots. The reports must 
clarify, time, dates, instances of  
problems and whether HPD responded to 
the situation. Known troublesome  
actors in-district should have their crimes 
documented and filed for DHIA staff 

7. Barbary Coast Security must add both the 
DHIA and the City of Hayward as  
additionally insured to its Commercial 
General Liability Insurance Policy; 

8. No Overtime will be authorized by the DHIA 
unless specifically requested (in  
writing) by the District Manager. 

9. Billings are to be submitted at the end of 
the month after work has been  
completed and must include documentation 
of shift attendance and any  
additional expense-related documentation 
for reimbursement purposes. 

 
After a lot of going back and forth, it appears that 
the insurance issues with Barbary Coast have been 
met. Gary Delagnes, CEO of Barbary Coast Security, 

 
 
 
 
 
c.  Jeff moved and 
Ben seconded 
approval of 
splitting the auto 
insurance costs 
with Barbary Coast.  
The motion was 
approved by all 
except one vote in 
opposition by Bill. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Text Box
5






       

4 
 

has asked for flexibility on the auto insurance policy 
vendor requirements. Mr. Delagnes is asking the 
DHIA to cover $225 in auto insurance per month, 
reasoning BCS personnel will not be driving any 
vehicles in the course of their patrol work for the 
DHIA. Dinesh stated that the wording of the 
contract must include language for indemnification 
of contracted services between the DHIA and BCS. 
Gary will need to sign an indemnity agreement 
protecting the DHIA from any and all insurance 
claims made against the DHIA regarding 
deployment of these supplemental security patrols.  
Jeff also suggested that we split the insurance costs 
at $112.50 per month.  A lengthy discussion on the 
negotiating of this agreement took place. 
   

Land Use;  Bill 
Matheson 
 
 
 
 
 

A number of issues were brought up for discussion 
at the next meeting. Those issues include: 
-Main and B has been listed for sale for 1.6 million. 
-Main and Maple will be brought to the Committee 
for review later this Spring. 
-EAH has plans for a new development at 2nd and C 
St.  
-Fiber-Optic options need to be pursued and 
expanded in Downtown. 
-The Committee cannot meet in City Hall since it is 
still closed.  
Discussion followed.  

a.  No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Board Meeting The next meeting of the Board of Directors will be 
held as a zoom meeting on July 22nd, 2021, at 2:00 
p.m.  via zoom.  

  

 
Minutes taken by Marco Li Mandri, Executive Director 


Text Box
6






 

DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 
    

22650 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

 
ARTICLE 4     DIRECTORS 

Section 1.  Number and Term 
The Corporation shall have a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of seventeen (17) 
Directors and collectively they shall be known as the Board of Directors.  The exact 
number of Directors shall be fixed from time-to-time by resolution by the Board of 
Directors.  Subject to the foregoing provisions for changing the number of Directors, the 
following seats shall be allocated to the Board of Directors:  

A) No less than a two-thirds majority of the seats on the Board of Directors at all times 
shall be filled by Property Owner Directors (as defined in Section 2 of this Article 
4).  Each property within the district boundaries, based upon the legal status of 
ownership, is entitled to appoint only one representative to serve on the Board of 
Directors; 

B) The balance of seats shall be filled by Community at Large Directors as defined in 
Section 2 of this Article 4); 

C) Directors shall be elected for a term of two (2) years., However, following the first 
election of Directors, one half (½) of the Property Owner Directors and one half 
(1/2 ) of the Community Directors shall serve a term of one (1) year, and one-half 
(½) of the of the Property Owner Directors and one half (½) of the Community 
Directors shall serve a term of two (2) years.  The Directors may assign the one-
year terms by unanimous agreement, but in the absence of such agreement, the 
Directors receiving one-year terms shall be chosen by lot at the meeting at which 
the election is held.  This staggering of terms will ensure that the entire Board is 
not replaced within one calendar year. Directors’ terms shall commence on the 
date of their election and expire on the date of the election of the successor to the 
Director whose term is expiring.   

Section 2.  Qualifications 
Members of the Board shall possess the following qualifications: 
A) Property Owner Directors shall be owners of real property within the boundaries of 

the Downtown Hayward Community Benefit District (the “District”), who have made 
full payment of all District assessments due for the previous and current fiscal 
years, or the duly appointed authorized representative (as defined in these Bylaws) 
of such owner.   

B) Community at Large Directors shall be persons who a) own and operate a 
business located on property located within the boundaries of the District, or the 


Text Box
7



       

duly appointed authorized representative (as defined in these Bylaws) of such 
owner and operator; b) are community members who reside within the 
boundaries of the District; c) are individuals who do not reside or operate a 
business within the District boundaries but who show a high degree of interest 
and concern for the welfare of the  District and who understand its connection to 
the community at large, and who the Board believes may assist the Corporation 
to fulfill its goals as a public benefit Corporation. 

C) A group of stakeholders consisting of the persons set forth in Exhibit “A” attached 
to these Bylaws and who have placed their signatures on Exhibit “A”, is hereby-
appointed upon the execution of these Bylaws as an interim Board of Directors to 
oversee creation and functioning of the Corporation including the adoption of the 
Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws of the Corporation, an initial governance plan, 
and the election of the First Board of Directors.  The interim Board shall serve until 
they have elected a fully qualified Board of Directors in accordance with these 
Bylaws.   

Section 3.  Nomination and Election 
Not less than forty-five (45) days before the date set forth for the Annual meeting of the 
Directors, the President shall appoint at least three (3) Directors, at least two of whom 
shall be Property Owner Directors, as the Nominating Committee to solicit nominees for 
consideration for election as Directors.  The names so proposed, by the Committee shall 
be presented to the Board at its Annual meeting.  The Nominations Committee shall 
include the President and at least two other Directors.  

The Nominations Committee shall provide nomination forms to all eligible property owners 
and Directors.  The nomination forms shall be mailed out at least thirty (30) days prior to 
the date set for the annual meeting.  A due date of at least twenty (20) days prior to the 
annual meeting date shall be stated as the deadline for submitting nominations to the 
Nominations Committee; 

A) The nominees, who have been deemed to be qualified, consistent with these 
Bylaws shall be presented to the Board for consideration of election to the Board 
at its annual meeting. 

B) At the annual meeting the Directors may vote to accept some or all of the nominees 
submitted by the Nominations Committee. The election of Directors shall comply 
with the allocation provided in Section 1 of this Article 4.   

Nominations may not be made from the floor but only in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in this Section 3 or such other procedures as may be determined 
by the Board. 
 


Text Box
8



Jun 21 Budget Jan - Jun 21 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Income
Assessment Income

Delinquency 0.00 0.00 0.00 -40,000.00 -40,000.00
Carry Forward 0.00 0.00 0.00 363,142.54 363,142.54
Assessment Income - Other 0.00 49,637.00 373,005.49 297,822.00 595,644.00

Total Assessment Income 0.00 49,637.00 373,005.49 620,964.54 918,786.54

Total Income 0.00 49,637.00 373,005.49 620,964.54 918,786.54

Expense
Administration

Accounting Fees 0.00 333.00 1,450.00 2,002.00 4,000.00
Bank Charges 0.00 4.00 8.00 26.00 50.00
Insurance - Liability, D and O 0.00 666.00 7,498.28 4,004.00 8,000.00
Legal Fees 0.00 83.00 120.00 502.00 1,000.00
Office Supplies 76.25 166.00 999.97 1,004.00 2,000.00
Postage, Mailing Service 0.00 125.00 87.96 750.00 1,500.00
Printing and Copying 0.00 166.00 0.00 1,004.00 2,000.00
Rent 1,200.00 1,250.00 7,200.00 7,500.00 15,000.00
Staff Consulting (New City) 6,500.00 6,500.00 39,000.00 39,000.00 78,000.00
Telephone, Telecommunications 225.00 166.00 2,326.32 1,004.00 2,000.00
Utilities 435.07 250.00 1,566.59 1,500.00 3,000.00
Admin Contingency 0.00 166.00 659.00 1,004.00 2,000.00

Total Administration 8,436.32 9,875.00 60,916.12 59,300.00 118,550.00

DISI
Advertising 72.00 166.00 647.00 1,004.00 2,000.00
Annual Report 0.00 250.00 0.00 1,500.00 3,000.00
Branding & Signage 0.00 333.00 375.00 2,002.00 4,000.00
Outdoor Dining 507.50 1,333.00 2,735.00 8,002.00 16,000.00
PR / Social Media 0.00 1,000.00 7,850.00 6,000.00 12,000.00
Seasonal Displays 0.00 500.00 4,570.00 3,000.00 6,000.00
Special Events 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00 10,000.00
Staff Consulting (New City) 1,500.00 1,500.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 18,000.00
Website 0.00 166.00 0.00 1,004.00 2,000.00

Total DISI 2,079.50 5,248.00 28,677.00 31,512.00 73,000.00

SOBO
Capital Improvements 0.00 0.00 6,820.00 0.00 7,000.00
Fixed Assets - Major Purchase 4,897.00 2,083.00 4,897.00 12,502.00 25,000.00
Maintenance and Supplies 973.49 1,250.00 4,587.20 7,500.00 15,000.00
Nursery Supplies & Equipment 0.00 1,666.00 0.00 10,004.00 20,000.00
Payroll Expenses

Deductions 0.00 -300.00
Health Insurance 1,553.01 2,100.00 6,474.00 12,600.00 25,200.00
Payroll Service 148.10 315.00 1,328.78 1,910.00 3,800.00
Payroll Tax Expense 6,720.24 4,666.00 40,218.14 28,004.00 56,000.00
Payroll Workers Comp Ins 3,426.00 2,100.00 599.00 12,600.00 25,200.00
Payroll Expenses - Other 13,977.18 14,150.00 77,194.00 84,900.00 169,800.00

Total Payroll Expenses 25,824.53 23,331.00 125,513.92 140,014.00 280,000.00

Cameras 0.00 0.00 8,918.80 0.00 50,000.00
Professional Services 18,649.00 16,666.66 22,649.00 100,000.04 200,000.00
Supplies for SOBO 559.00 416.00 3,073.75 2,504.00 5,000.00
Vehicle Related

Pressure Washing 0.00 500.00 1,180.08 3,000.00 6,000.00
Gas 586.08 416.00 1,829.73 2,504.00 5,000.00
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 0.00 333.00 414.00 2,002.00 4,000.00
Vehicle Related - Other 0.00 465.37

Total Vehicle Related 586.08 1,249.00 3,889.18 7,506.00 15,000.00

Total SOBO 51,489.10 46,661.66 180,348.85 280,030.04 617,000.00

Contingency / Reserve 0.00 9,186.35 12.60 55,118.44 110,236.54

Total Expense 62,004.92 70,971.01 269,954.57 425,960.48 918,786.54

Net Income -62,004.92 -21,334.01 103,050.92 195,004.06 0.00

11:50 AM Downtown Hayward Improvement Association
07/20/21 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Cash Basis June 2021

Page 1


Text Box
9




Text Box
10




Text Box
11







Text Box
12




Text Box
13




Text Box
14




Text Box
15




Text Box
16




Text Box
17






Downtown Hayward Improvement Association

Social Media Report 06/21
Caroline S. Sandoval, Social Media Manager

Summary
June being Pride Month, I intended to focus on businesses that offered

something unique in observance of Pride. Ultimately, this ended up not being a

great idea because the only places that did anything for Pride were the same

businesses we had featured in the past. So, I shifted to focus on the events

occurring in June.  At the beginning of the month, I posted information about

the “Take-Out Foodware Solutions” webinar hosted by StopWaste.org.  Next, I

attended the double ribbon cutting/grand opening events hosted by our new

downtown record stores and the City of Hayward’s First Juneteenth Celebration

and was sure to post photographs. Finally, I posted some pictures from the

downtown farmer’s market in honor of Fresh Fruits and Vegetables Month.

Overall Metrics for Facebook:  New Page Likes = 12 Post Reach = 1673  Post Engagement = 361

For Instagram: New Followers = 34  Account Reach = 1105  Content Interactions = 365


Text Box
18



Posts
FB
Views

FB
Likes

FB
Shares IG Reach

IG % non
followers
reached

IG
Likes

IG Profile
Visits

Take-Out Foodware 81 1 0 306 25% 5 0

Record Stores
Opening 884 45 4 733 12% 170 9

Juneteenth 294 18 0 454 3% 80 7

Fresh Fruits and
Veggies Month 232 4 1 349 20% 31 2


Text Box
19



Posts


Text Box
20



Stories

Next Month
July is Independence month so I will keep an eye out for any Fourth of July

specials or sales.  I have “a little birdie told me” post announcing the new

Mexican Restaurant going in where PLayt used to be. I will attend and post

photos from the Together For Hayward reopening of downtown and be sure to

promote the event as well.


Text Box
21




Text Box
22




Text Box
23




Text Box
24




Text Box
25



 

DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 
    

22650 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

 

Downtown Hayward Improvement Association 
District Identity and Streetscape Improvement  

Monday, June 21st, 2021, 11:00 a.m.  
Meeting held via zoom  

 
Present: Sara Buizer, Catherine Ralston, Resti Zaballos, Bill Matheson 
 
Absent:    
 
Staff:   Marco Li Mandri, Dominic Li Mandri/New City America 
   
MINUTES: 

Item Discussion Action Taken? 

1.  Introductions Sara called the meeting to order at 11:02 a.m. No action taken 

2.  Public 
Comment 

No public comment No action taken 

3.  Review of 
FY20-21 DISI 
Budget 

The YTD budget was reviewed.    No action taken 

4. Committee 
Updates  
a.  FY 20-21 
Annual report 
 
b.  Outdoor 
Dining on Main 
Street update 
 
c.  Street banner 
program 
 
d.  July 10th re-
opening 

a.  The Annual report is near finalized and should be 
completed within the week. Once finalized, it will be 
printed and mailed to all property owners within 
district. 
 
b.  Catherine gave an update on the outdoor dining 
policy being extended for businesses impacted by 
the COVID-19 operating restrictions in downtown. At 
this time, there’s still uncertainty regarding when 
the Main Street Complete Street project will break 
ground, which will directly impact the use of 
installed Main Street parklets. Committee consensus 
was that staff should hold off on furthering the 
design process of the Main Street parklets until the 

 
a.  No action taken 
 
 
b.  No action taken 
 
 
 
c. No action taken 
 
 
d.  No action taken 
 
 


Text Box
26



       

celebration 
 
e.  Events 

Committee receives clarification from City of 
Hayward Public Works on when the Main Street 
construction will commence. 
 
c.   Dominic is working with NCA staff to come up 
with historical banners for the pedestrian decorative 
street poles on B Street. Catherine suggested the 
theme of the banner series be broadened and focus 
more on general messaging versus historical/notable 
figures or places. Staff will work to craft some 
designs in-house for local printing, branded with the 
DHIA logo. The DHIA crew can install on the poles.  
 
d.  The City of Hayward is planning an official re-
opening celebration event for Saturday, July 10th 
from 12 – 6 PM. The event space will span B Street 
from Foothill to Mission Blvd. and Main Street from 
A to C Streets. The DHIA will be assisting the City 
with site preparation, day-of support, and clean-up 
as well as social media promotional support.  
 
e.  The chamber has submitted a proposal for 
Committee consideration requesting DHIA 
underwriting of several Chamber-organized events 
in Q3-Q4 2021 to bring people back to downtown 
following the lifting of restrictions. After review of 
the proposal, the following events will be 
recommended to the Board for support.  All 
conditions including insurance and cleanup will be 
included as a condition of the DHIA support: 
 
1.  Street Party/August 19th:  $5,000 
2.  Mariachi Festival/Sept. 18th:  $1,500 
3.  Light up the Season/Dec. 4th:  $1,500 
4.  Downtown Holiday Giveaway/Nov. 23rd through 
January 4th, 2022:  $ 7,500 
 
Total Financial Request:  $15,500 
 
Due to the uncertainty around the COVID-19 
pandemic restrictions, no funds were allocated to 
downtown events in the FY20-21 DISI Budget. 
However, there is currently $10,000 under DISI 
Unallocated and $16,000 allocated for Outdoor 
Dining, which has only expended ~$2,300 thus far in 
the development of preliminary parklet designs. 
Thus, there is a total of $23,000+ the Committee 

 
e.  The Committee is 
recommending the 
$15,500 be allocated to 
the Chamber to 
underwrite the events 
listed in the minutes, 
based upon the 
insurance coverage to 
the DHIA, and clean up 
after the event.  The 
motion was approved 
unanimously  


Text Box
27



       

could potentially reallocate towards downtown 
events to foster more activity downtown in the 
immediate future, which is of paramount concern. 
 
The Committee is recommending to the Board that 
the $10,000 in Unallocated and $5,500 from 
Outdoor Dining be allocated to meet this proposed 
underwriting request.  

Next Meeting The next meeting of the DISI Committee was set for 
Tuesday August 3rd, 2021 at 1 PM at Hayward City 
Hall (pending room reservation). 

 

Minutes taken by Marco Li Mandri, Administrator 


Text Box
28



Date: 17 May 2021 Offer Expires: 17 June 2021

Confidential

24449309Quote Id: 

Prepared For:

Nexstreet

Prepared By: Jerry Gudeman

Turf & Industrial Equipment
2715 Lafayette Street
Santa Clara, CA 95050

Tel:  408-727-5660
Fax:  408-727-5875
Email: jlg@turfandindustrial.com


Text Box
29



	
	

	
Legion	Corporation	|	5150	N.		Sixth	Street,	Suite	173,	Fresno,	CA	93710	|	800.228.3579	

www.legioncorporation.com	|	PPO:	17142	

 
 
July 2nd, 2021 
 
 
Dominic LiMandri 
Downtown Hayward Improvement Association 
22654 Main Street 
Hayward, CA 92103 
 
 
Re: Patrol Service RFP 
 
 
Dear Mr. Dominic LiMandri 
 
 
I am writing to you on behalf of Legion Corporation, for the purpose of initiating a business 
relationship between our team and your highly esteemed organization. I would like to 
explain Legion’s way of doing business, how it separates us form other security 
organizations, and why we are the best at what we do.  
 
 
THE LEGION WAY. “The Legion Way” is unique because we understand that we are 
customer service-based business. Our customers deserve a high level of service, 
communication, transparency, and responsiveness. Legion’s way can be broken down into 
three main categories which are based on our tightly held core value system. Legion’s Core 
Values are connected to every aspect of the services that we provide. The Legion Way is 
broken down as follows: 
 
 

1. SERVICE 
2. ADAPTABILITY 
3. SYSTEMS & MANAGEMENT 

 
 
SERVICE. Superior customer service is something every company boosts yet few can 
truly execute on. There are likely many reasons for this varying from organization to 
organization, but there are a few key reasons to be considered. First and foremost, in the 
security industry most companies compete purely on price in order to security as much 
business as possible. This may seem as if they are trying to benefit the potential customer, 
however, it is really to their detriment and here is why. When a vendor’s profit margin is 
close to 10% or less, an executive team will direct their management team to focus their 
energy where their time yields greater earnings, leaving clients who have smaller accounts 
neglected for larger ones that have greater margins. This unfortunate fact leads us to the 


Text Box
30



	
	

	
Legion	Corporation	|	5150	N.		Sixth	Street,	Suite	173,	Fresno,	CA	93710	|	800.228.3579	

www.legioncorporation.com	|	PPO:	17142	

underlying systemic, cultural, and management issue that plagues most organizations, 
which translates to a lack of care and poor service. Legion overcomes these pitfalls in 3 
distinct ways; 1) we don’t undervalue our service by competing 100% on price, which 
ultimately negatively effects the client’s service and is often the root cause for the 
termination of the relationship in the security industry, rather we provide value that justifies 
the additional expense; 2) we instill a strong sense of culture internally; and 3) we have 
systems and controls in place to handle issues in specific time frames.  
 
Ultimately, Legion’s high level of service is attributed to its service-oriented culture, its 
responsiveness, its Adaptability, and its team’s willingness to go to extraordinary ends to 
execute on Legion’s mission. 
 
 
ADAPTABILITY. Security threats are constantly changing as are the needs of our clients. 
Security is not a static industry and having a high level of adaptability is a critical 
component of any security operation. As many organizations struggle with adaptably 
Legion is able to overcome new challenges because its management team is well trained, 
they understand the needs, the client’s business operation, and our mission as it relates to 
those operations. Legion has removed the cumbersome bureaucracy that burdens many 
organizations by empowering its leaders to execute on change based on needs in real time. 
 
 
SYSTEMS & MANAGEMENT. The management structure of Legion corporation places 
an emphasis on the concepts “Span of Control” and “Decentralized Command.” The strong 
culture within the organization, and its leadership’s ability to instill the mission and goals 
of Legion, gives our team confidence and autonomy to perform and execute on critical 
decisions quickly and effectively. 
 
 

• Span of control: The manageable number of team members a manager can 
reasonably control. 
 

• Decentralized Command: A decentralized organization is one in which most decisions are made 
by mid-level or lower-level managers, rather than being made centrally by the head of the 
company. It's the opposite of a centralized organization, in which all decisions are made at the 
top. 

 
 
Legion’s primary reporting, tracking, and management tool is an application called 
“SYNCrew.” SYNCrew allows team members to take photos of anomalies, make notes, 
write reports, and clock in and out among other administrative activates. All photos taken 
using SYNCrew have geo tags so that legion’s management team and clients can see 
exactly when and where the activity occurred. SYNCrew keeps records of all team activity 
as well as historical mapping of their physical locations while on duty by “pinging” the 
phone’s location ever 2 minutes. The mapping keeps historical records of all of the 


Text Box
31



	
	

	
Legion	Corporation	|	5150	N.		Sixth	Street,	Suite	173,	Fresno,	CA	93710	|	800.228.3579	

www.legioncorporation.com	|	PPO:	17142	

employee’s movements while the application is in use. All SYNCrew mapping and 
activates can also be viewed in real time. SYNCrew is used in combination with google 
docs to maintain and review schedules for proper billing and compensation for hours 
worked by team members. 
 
All of these concepts lead to the execution of our purpose and mission, to provide the 
highest level of customer service possible. Legion is highly attuned to their client’s needs, 
and security duties aside, we are in the service industry and our mission is to serve.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Joseph Shelley 
Chairman of the Board 
Legion Corporation  


Text Box
32



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	 	

	
	
OVERNIGHT	SECURITY	PILOT	PROGRAM	

DHIA	
 

Joseph Shelley, Chairman 
Cell: 650.892.5498 
Main: 800.228.3579 

joe@legioncroporation.com 
www.legioncorporation.com 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Text Box
33



	
	

	
LEGION	CORPORATION	|	181	O’FARRELL	STREET,	SUITE	506,	SAN	FRANCISCO,	CA	94102	

800.829.3579	|	LEGIONCORPORATION.COM	|	PPO:	17142	
	
	

2	

TABLE	OF	CONTENTS	
	
	
COMPANY OVERVIEW	......................................................................................................................................	3	
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE AND CUSTOMER SERVICE	..................................................................	5	
SERVICES PROVISIONS	.....................................................................................................................................	7	
DEVELOPMENT AND RETENTION OF EMPLOYEES.	...........................................................................	9	
OVERSIGHT AND ADMINISTRATION.	.....................................................................................................	10	
COST PROPOSAL, SCHEDULE, AND INVOICING.	...............................................................................	10	
TRAINING.	............................................................................................................................................................	12	
COMPUTER MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING SYSTEMS.	.............................................................	13	
INSURANCE:	...........................................................................................................................................................	14	
CLIENT REFERENCES.	....................................................................................................................................	15	
EXHIBIT	A:	UNIFORM	AND	EQUIPMENT	STANDARDS	.............................................................................	19	
EXHIBIT	B:	TACTICAL	MEETING	AGENDA:	..................................................................................................	22	
EXHIBIT	C:	LEGION	CORPORATION	FILED	TRAINING	DAILY		................		ACTIVITY	REPORT	(DOR).
	 23	
EXHIBIT	D:	SYNCREW	OVERVIEW	..................................................................................................................	25	
EXHIBIT E: INSURANCE CERT EXAMPLE:	............................................................................................	26	
EXHIBIT F: EVIDENCE OF FINANCIAL STABILITY	...........................................................................	28	
EXHIBIT G: PPO LICENSE INFORMATION	............................................................................................	29	
	

 

 

 
	

 
	
	
	
	
	


Text Box
34






	
	

	
LEGION	CORPORATION	|	181	O’FARRELL	STREET,	SUITE	506,	SAN	FRANCISCO,	CA	94102	

800.829.3579	|	LEGIONCORPORATION.COM	|	PPO:	17142	
	
	

11	

Unarmed	 vs	 Armed	 Options:	 The	 use	 of	 armed	 or	 unarmed	 guards	 carries	 a	
significant	cost	difference.	Using	low	paid	armed	officers	is	never	recommended	and	
we	do	not	compete	on	price	for	armed	services	due	to	the	inherent	liability	of	using	
poorly	trained	individuals	with	firearms.		
	
We	have	had	great	success	in	San	Francisco	with	USBID	using	unarmed	officers,	which	
cis	achieved	through	training,	hiring	practices,	and	competitive	pay	rates.	Both	rates	
for	armed	and	unarmed	guards	are	listed	in	the	table	below.	
	

ITEM	 PAY	TYPE	 RATE	
Armed	Guard	Option	 Regular	hourly	rate		 $56.00*	
	 Overtime	hourly	rate	 $84.00	
	 Holiday	hourly	rate	(Federal	only)	 $84.00	
Unarmed	Guard	Option	 Regular	hourly	rate		 46.00	
	 Overtime	hourly	rate	 69.00	
	 Holiday	hourly	rate	(Federal	only)	 69.00	
Field	supervisor		 NA	 Included	
Account	manager	 NA	 Included	
Motor	vehicle	(Chevy	
Bolt,	electric	vehicle)	

NA	 $600	per	month		

Motor	vehicle	parking	
Estimated	Price	

NA	 $250	per	month	

Body	cam,	Dash	cam	
Storage	

NA	 Included		

	
SCHEDULE:	 Considering	 the	 current	 job	market	 for	 security	 organizations,	 it	 has	
been	our	experience	that	parttime	positions	are	difficult	to	staff,	and	that	the	more	
experienced	and	qualified	officers	are	in	high	demand	and	seek	fulltime	employment.	
This	 leaves	 lower	 qualified	 individuals	 for	 part-time	 position,	 or	 officer’s	
“moonlighting”	and	never	fully	committed	to	parttime	side	work.	To	properly	staff	a	
consistent,	professional	team,	Legion	recommends	deploying	as	follows:	
	

• 2-officer	teams,	
• 8	hours	shift	each,	
• 5-7	 days	 per	 week	 (Exact	 shift	 times	 to	 be	 determined	 by	 DHIA	 based	 on	

negotiation	with	Legion),	
• Total	weekly	hours:	5	days	per	week	at	80	hours	or	7	days	per	week	at	112	

hours.	
	
PAYMENT	FOR	SERVICES:	Legion	shall	invoice	Client	monthly	for	the	services	provided	to	
Client	pursuant	to	this	Agreement	for	the	preceding	month.	Invoices	are	due	within	10	days	


Text Box
35






	
	

	
LEGION	CORPORATION	|	181	O’FARRELL	STREET,	SUITE	506,	SAN	FRANCISCO,	CA	94102	

800.829.3579	|	LEGIONCORPORATION.COM	|	PPO:	17142	
	
	

15	

 

CLIENT REFERENCES. 
	
	

	
Chris	Boss	

Director	of	Services	Union	Square	BID	
Work:	415.781.7880	
Cell:	925.705.5035	

Email:	chris@unionsquarebid.com	
	

Michael	Brinkofski	
Zendesk	

AMER/LATAM	Security	and	Safety	Manager	
415.738.7639	

Email:	mbrinkofski@zendesk.com	
	

Dennis	Flynn	
Flynn	Investments	
Work:	415.989.7117	
Mobile:	415.710.4751	

	
	

Rafael	Nicolescu	
Tenderloin	Neighborhood	Development	Corporation	

Work:	415.632.4693	
Email:	rnicolescu@tndc.org	

	
	

Blake	Westrate	
Veritas	Investments	
Cell:	415.640.3731	

Email:	bw@greentreepmco.com	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Text Box
36






	
	

	
LEGION	CORPORATION	|	181	O’FARRELL	STREET,	SUITE	506,	SAN	FRANCISCO,	CA	94102	

800.829.3579	|	LEGIONCORPORATION.COM	|	PPO:	17142	
	
	

20	

IV. UNIFROM	PHOTOS	BELOW	(THIS	IS	STANDARD,	EXCLUDING	THE	
FIREARM):	

	

	
	


Text Box
37






	
	

	
LEGION	CORPORATION	|	181	O’FARRELL	STREET,	SUITE	506,	SAN	FRANCISCO,	CA	94102	

800.829.3579	|	LEGIONCORPORATION.COM	|	PPO:	17142	
	
	

26	

EXHIBIT E: INSURANCE CERT EXAMPLE: 

 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE Date
08/21/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Infinity Insurance Agency Inc
Po Box 2048
Birmingham, AL 35201-2048

CONTACT
NAME:       CUSTOMER SERVICE
PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext): 8004282342

FAX
(A/C, No): 8553794454

E-MAIL
ADDRESS: INFINITYBROKERSERVICE@IPACC.COM

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A :  Infinity Select Insurance Company 20260

INSURED

Legion Corporation
5150 N 6th St
Ste 173
Fresno, CA 93710

INSURED B :
INSURED C :
INSURED D :
INSURED E :
INSURED F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL

INSD
SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

__________________________________

__________________________________
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY PRO-
JECT LOC

OTHER:

EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X 504610093973001 07/26/2019 07/26/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident) $1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident) $

$

UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

EACH OCCURRENCE $

AGGREGATE $

$

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y / N

N / A

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

-��)��
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD


Text Box
38






	
	

	
LEGION	CORPORATION	|	181	O’FARRELL	STREET,	SUITE	506,	SAN	FRANCISCO,	CA	94102	

800.829.3579	|	LEGIONCORPORATION.COM	|	PPO:	17142	
	
	

27	

	
	
	

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

LEGIO-1 OP ID: JE

10/21/2019

Central Insurance Agency
Central Insurance Agency, Inc.
93 East Main Street
Smithtown, NY 11787
George Gavaris

877-242-9600 877-243-8995
certificates@ciainsures.com

Steadfast Insurance Company
American Guarantee and

Legion Corporation, Inc
PPO 17142
ID 742479
181 O'Farrell Street, Ste. 50
San Francisco, CA 94102

Zurich American Insurance Co.

A X 1,000,000
X EOL0288356-02 07/17/2019 07/17/2020 100,000

X 5,000
X 1,000,000

3,000,000
X 3,000,000

X 2,000,000
X

B
AUC0126003-02 07/17/2019 07/17/2020 2,000,000

10,000X
XC

5300004611-191 07/13/2019 07/13/2020 1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

Proof of Insurance                                                          
                                                                            
                                                                            
                                                                            

PROOF-2

Proof of Insurance

877-242-9600

26387
26247
10120

Assault & Battery
Errors & Omission


Text Box
39





